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Eboracum:  Roman York 

 

 

York has been a significant settlement for almost two thousand years,Ɲ a route to 

and a bulwark against Scotland, a Roman fortress, a prosperous Viking port, seat of 

government for both Church and State from Norman times, in its post-medieval 

decline a social, judicial and market centre for Yorkshire and, from Victorian times, 

a major railway junction and manufacturing centre.  Even its industry Ɲ chocolate Ɲ 

is palatable.  In the twentieth century it judiciously exploited its tourist potential 

and, belatedly, became a university town.  It is an appropriate home for the 

National Railway Museum and, in realising the possibilities of exciting archaeological 

digs within the Minster and at Coppergate, it fostered further examples of the 

developing art of museum display. 

 

The original siting of a settlement here was determined by the coincidence that the 

Yorkshire Ouse crosses the terminal moraine of  an  Ice Age glacier at the point of 

its confluence with the Foss:  a firm land-route across the marshy vale found the 

lowest practicable bridging-point at a site easily defensible being largely surrounded 

by water.  The Ouse also provided a route to the sea, at the limit of tides and 

therefore navigable to ocean-going ships in Roman times and for many hundreds of 

years afterwards. 

 

The Roman fort at York, Eboracum, was initially founded in AD 71 by a 

detachment of the Legio IX Hispana from Lincoln ( Lindum) in their campaign to 

subdue the indigenous tribe, the Brigantes.  The fifty-acre fortress, originally 

wooden, was gradually strengthened until by AD 107-8 it formed a considerable 

stone enclosure, some of which is still visible.  This outer rampart formed a 

rectangle:  the present walls follow its line from Bootham Bar to just past Monk Bar;  

hsr nsgdq svn bnqmdqr vdqd knb`sdc `s Rs Kdnm`qcƠr Oqhnqx 'sgd Ltks`mftk`q Snvdq(

and at Feasgate.  The principia, or military headquarters, stood on part of the later 

Minster site, and the two main streets of the fortress-city, the Via Principalis and the 

Via Praetoria, are still indicated by the lines of Petergate and Stonegate respectively.  

These streets pierced the walls at four gateways, Porta Principalis Dextra (Bootham 

Bar), Porta Decumana 'Fq`xƠr Bntqs+ adghmc sgd Sqd`rtqdqƠr Gntrd(+Porta 

Principalis Sinistra 'JhmfƠr Rpt`qd( `mcPorta Praetoria 'Rs GdkdmƠr Rpt`qd(- 

 

This last led to a bridge over the Ouse slightly downstream from the modern Lendal 

Bridge and into the civilian colonia, a trading centre the status of which indicates 

that Eboracum was by the early third century among the four or five most 

important towns of Roman Britain, alongside Colchester, Gloucester, Lincoln and 

London.  In AD 213 the colonia was designated capital of the province of Britannia 

inferior.  The total city -area is estimated to have been about 200 acres, and the 

population could have been in excess of 10,000 at its maximum, of which perhaps 

6,000 would be soldiers. 

 

Limited excavation has shown that the civilian settlement supported major public 

buildings, including bath-houses and numerous temples, was serviced by public 
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Hs hr khjdkx sg`s RhlnmƠr m`ud v`r hmsdmcdc sn rs`mc vhsg sgd Sq`mrhshnm`k bgnhq+ ats

once the Decorated work was completed the earlier building, though built with great 

craftsmanship, inevitably seemed unsatisfactory.  Nave and chapter-house were not 

roofed until the mid-fourteenth century, after which reconstruction of the choir 

commenced, beginning with the east end, in 1361.  Two distinct stages of 

construction are discernible both inside and out, separated by the felicitous positioning 

of eastern transepts which do not break beyond the building-line of the aisles.  The 

eastern section, with its distinctive external double tracery, was the work of William de 

Hoton, succeeded in 1369 by Roger de Patrington, and the choir, in which the double 

tracery is brought inside, was completed early in the fifteenth century by Hugh de 

Hedon, who was responsible for the great east window (1400-5).  It is noticeable how 

sgd athkcdqr ne sgd d`rsdqm `ql qdrodbsdc sgdhq oqdcdbdrrnqrƠ d`qkhdq vnqj sn sgd vdrs+

ats hmbnqonq`sdc sn `cu`ms`fd sgd Odqodmchbtk`q ed`stqdr ne sgdhq nvm fdmdq`shnmƠr

best practice. 

 

It was in the course of joining the choir to the crossing that the Early English central 

tower collapsed:  the vast replacement, probably designed by William of Colchester, 

whose unpopularity with the York masons caused him serious physical injury, has an 


